
 
 
 
 

 
PLANNING COMMITTEE  Contact:  Jane Creer / Metin Halil 

Committee Administrator 
  Direct : 020-8132-1211 / 1296 
Tuesday, 5th November, 2019 at 7.30 pm  Tel: 020-8379-1000 
Venue:  Conference Room 
Civic Centre, Silver Street,  
Enfield EN1 3XA 
 

PLEASE NOTE MEETING TIME 
 

 Ext:  1211 / 1296 
  
  
 E-mail:  jane.creer@enfield.gov.uk 

             metin.halil@enfield.gov.uk 

 Council website: www.enfield.gov.uk 

 
MEMBERS 
Councillors : Mahmut Aksanoglu (Chair), Sinan Boztas (Vice-Chair), 
Mahym Bedekova, Chris Bond, Elif Erbil, Ahmet Hasan, Tim Leaver, Hass Yusuf, 
Michael Rye OBE, Jim Steven and Maria Alexandrou 
 

 
N.B.  Any member of the public interested in attending the meeting 

should ensure that they arrive promptly at 7:15pm 
Please note that if the capacity of the room is reached, entry may not be 

permitted. Public seating will be available on a first come first served basis. 
 

Involved parties may request to make a deputation to the Committee by 
contacting the committee administrator before 12:00 noon on 4/11/19 

 
 

AGENDA – PART 1 
 
1. WELCOME AND APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 
2. DECLARATION OF INTEREST   
 
3. MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE HELD ON TUESDAY 15 

OCTOBER 2019  (Pages 1 - 6) 
 
 To receive the minutes of the Planning Committee meeting held on Tuesday 

15 October 2019. 
 

4. REPORT OF THE HEAD OF PLANNING  (REPORT NO. 138)  (Pages 7 - 8) 
 
 To receive the covering report of the Head of Planning. 

 
5. 19/01285/FUL - TRAVIS PERKINS, 699 GREEN LANES, LONDON, N21 

3RS  (Pages 9 - 56) 
 

Public Document Pack

mailto:jane.creer@enfield.gov.uk
mailto:metin.halil@enfield.gov.uk
http://www.enfield.gov.uk/


 RECOMMENDATION:  That subject to the completion of a S106 Agreement to 

secure the obligations as set out in the report, the Head of Development 
Management / the Planning Decisions Manager be authorised to grant planning 
permission subject to conditions. 

WARD:  Winchmore Hill 
 

 
 
 



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 15.10.2019 

 

- 223 - 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE 
HELD ON TUESDAY, 15 OCTOBER 2019 

 
COUNCILLORS  
 
PRESENT Mahmut Aksanoglu, Sinan Boztas, Mahym Bedekova, Chris 

Bond, Elif Erbil, Ahmet Hasan, Hass Yusuf, Michael Rye OBE, 
Jim Steven and Maria Alexandrou 

 
ABSENT Tim Leaver 

 
OFFICERS: Andy Higham (Head of Development Management), Joseph 

McKee (Senior Planning Officer), David Gittens (Planning 
Decisions Manager), Vincent Lacovara (Head of Planning) 
and Claire Williams (Planning Decisions Manager) Jane Creer 
(Secretary) and Metin Halil (Secretary) 

  
 
Also Attending: Dennis Stacey (Chair, Conservation Advisory Group) 

17 members of the public, applicant and agent representatives 
 

 
252   
WELCOME AND APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Councillor Aksanoglu, Chair, welcomed all attendees. 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Leaver and Dennis 
Stacey (Chair of CAG). 
 
253   
DECLARATION OF INTEREST  
 
NOTED 
 

1. Councillor Bedekova declared a non-pecuniary interest in item 7, 
19/00986/FUL – Sinclair’s Laundry Site, 199 Brettenham Road, London 
N18 2HE, as she was the Local Ward Councillor for Edmonton Green. 

2. Councillor Hass Yusuf declared a pecuniary interest in item 6, 47 
Eversley Park Road, London N21 1JJ, as the agent is known to him. 
He would not be voting on this application. 

 
254   
MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE HELD ON TUESDAY 17 
SEPTEMBER 2019  
 
AGREED that the minutes of the Planning Committee meeting held on 
Tuesday 17 September 2019 were agreed as a correct record. 
 
255   

Public Document PackPage 1 Agenda Item 3



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 15.10.2019 

 

- 224 - 

REPORT OF THE HEAD OF PLANNING (REPORT NO.120)  
 
RECEIVED the report of the Head of Planning. 
 
256   
19/02830/FUL  -  39A CAMLET WAY, BARNET, EN4 0LJ  
 
NOTED 
 

1. The introduction by Joseph McKee, Senior Planning Officer, clarifying 
the proposals and highlighting the key issues. 

2. Receipt of letter from the London Fire Brigade (LFB) and 
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) confirming no objection to the 
proposed development on grounds of fire safety. 

3. Also reported the need for conditions to cover Refuse and Servicing 
Management Plan & Landscaping along the boundary with 9/10 
Alderwood Mews. 

4. The deputation of Kevin Robinson, neighbouring resident, speaking 
against the officers’ recommendation. 

5. The deputation of Councillor Alessandro Georgiou speaking as 
Cockfosters Ward Councillor, against the officers’ recommendation. 

6. The deputation of Alan Cox, the agent, speaking in response. 
7. Members’ debate and questions responded to by officers. 
8. The support of the majority of the committee for the officers’ 

recommendation: 5 votes for, 4 votes against and 1 abstention. 
 
AGREED that the Head of Development Management/Planning Decisions 
Manager be authorised to grant planning permission subject to the conditions 
and the agreed conditions below: 
 

 Refuse/Servicing Management Plan 
 
No part of the development hereby approved shall be commenced until the 
applicant has submitted and had approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority, a Refuse and Servicing Management Plan which sets out how 
deliveries and servicing will function as well as details of the private refuse 
collection arrangements. Servicing and refuse arrangements will be 
implemented in accordance with detail approved and maintained thereafter 
unless otherwise agreed by the local planning authority. 
 
Reason: To ensure goods can be delivered, waste removed in a safe and 
efficient manner which would not have any unacceptable adverse impact to 
the safety or capacity of the local highways network. 

 
 

 
 

 Planting Schedule 
 
Prior to the first occupation of the development hereby approved, a scaled 
plan shall be submitted and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority showing all existing and proposed vegetation and landscape 

Page 2



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 15.10.2019 

 

- 225 - 

features to be retained within the site. The submitted details to include 
specific reference to planting/landscape features along the shared boundary 
with No.9 Alderwood Mews which is of particular importance. 
 
The site shall be landscaped strictly in accordance with the approved details 
in the first planting season or prior to the first occupation of the development; 
whichever is sooner. 
Any new tree(s) that die(s) or become(s) severely damaged or diseased shall 
be removed and replaced within five years of planting. Unless further specific 
permission has been given by the Local Planning Authority, replacement 
planting shall be in accordance with the approved details. 
 
Reason: Required to safeguard and enhance the character and amenity of 
the area, to provide ecological, environmental and bio-diversity benefits and 
to maximise the quality and usability of open spaces within the development. 
 
 

 Obscured Glazing 
 
The glazing serving the ground floor window within the northern elevation of 
plot 4 shall be non-opening below 1.7m and be obscured. The glazing shall 
not be altered without approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: To safeguard the privacy of the occupiers of neighbouring properties.  

 
257   
19/02435/HOU  -  47 EVERSLEY PARK ROAD, LONDON N21 1JJ  
 
NOTED 
 

1. The introduction by Claire Williams, Planning Decisions Manager, 
clarifying the proposals and highlighting the key issues. 

2. The date shown at paragraph 5.1 (page 52) of the report should read 
‘September 2018’. 

3. The deputation of Murat Aydemir, applicant/agent, speaking against the 
officers’ recommendation of refusal. 

4. Members’ debate and questions responded to by officers. 
5. The support of the majority of the committee for the officers 

recommendation: 5 votes for (Chair’s casting vote included), 4 votes 
against, 1 abstention and Councillor Yusuf did not vote. 

 
 
AGREED that planning permission be Refused. 

 
258   
19/00986/FUL  -  SINCLAIR'S LAUNDRY SITE, 199 BRETTENHAM ROAD, 
LONDON N18 2HE  
 
NOTED 
 

1. The introduction by Claire Williams, Planning Decisions Manager, 
clarifying the proposals and highlighting the key issues. 

Page 3



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 15.10.2019 

 

- 226 - 

2. As reported, paragraph 7.3 (page 75 of the report), Thames Water 
comments to be addressed via information rather than a condition. 

3. As reported, an additional letter of objection raising concerns regarding 
noise and impact on residential amenity (reference made to 
Environmental Health comments on page 76 of the report). 

4. The deputation of John Ferguson, the applicant, in support of the 
officers’ recommendation. 

5. Members debate and questions responded to by officers. 
6. The unanimous support of the committee for the officers’ 

recommendation. 
 
AGREED that subject to the completion of a Section 106 Agreement to secure 
the obligations as set out in the report, the Head of Development 
Management/Planning Decisions Manager be authorised to grant planning 
permission subject to conditions. 
 
259   
19/00201/FUL  -  465-469 GREEN LANES, LONDON N13 4BS  
 
NOTED 
 

1. The introduction by Claire Williams, Planning Decisions Manager, 
clarifying that this application had been heard at the 29th August 2019 
meeting, which had been deferred due to a lack of affordable housing. 

2. As reported, received an update on viability assessment and affordable 
housing review from Area Manager. 

3. It was agreed to prioritise payments previously secured for highway 
improvements and education. 

4. Members debate and questions responded to by officers. 
5. The support of the majority of the committee for the officers’ 

recommendation: 7 votes for and 3 abstentions. 
 
AGREED that subject to the completion of a Section 106 agreement, the 
Head of Development Management /Planning Decisions Manager be 
authorised to grant planning permission subject to conditions. 
 
260   
PLANNING PANEL  
 
NOTED 
 

1. The provisional Planning Committee scheduled for the 5 November 
2019, will be going ahead. 

2. The Planning Panel for the Southgate Office Village application has 
been confirmed for the 21 November 2019. 

 
Post Meeting note: 
 
The planning panel is confirmed to be held at Highlands School 
Assembly Hall on the 21 November 2019. 

Page 4



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 15.10.2019 

 

- 227 - 

 
 
 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



  

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2019/2020 - REPORT NO   138 
 

 
COMMITTEE: 
PLANNING COMMITTEE 
05.11.2019 
 
REPORT OF: 
Head of Planning 
 
Contact Officer: 
Planning Decisions Manager 
David Gittens Tel: 020 8132 0870 
Claire Williams Tel: 020 8132 0869 
 
3.1 PLANNING APPLICATIONS AND APPLICATIONS TO DISPLAY 

ADVERTISEMENTS  DEC 
 
 On the Schedules attached to this report I set out my recommendations in 

respect of planning applications and applications to display advertisements.  I 
also set out in respect of each application a summary of any representations 
received and any later observations will be reported verbally at your meeting. 

 
 Background Papers 
 

(1) Section 70 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 states that the 
Local Planning Authority shall have regard to the provisions of the 
development plan, so far as material to the application, and to any 
other material considerations.  Section 54A of that Act, as inserted by 
the Planning and Compensation Act 1991, states that where in making 
any determination under the Planning Acts, regard is to be had to the 
development, the determination shall be made in accordance with the 
plan unless the material considerations indicate otherwise.  The 
development plan for the London Borough of Enfield is the London 
Plan (March 2015), the Core Strategy (2010) and the Development 
Management Document (2014) together with other supplementary 
documents identified in the individual reports. 

 
(2) Other background papers are those contained within the file, the 

reference number of which is given in the heading to each application. 

ITEM 3 AGENDA - PART 1 

SUBJECT - 
 

MISCELLANEOUS MATTERS 

Page 7 Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank



LONDON BOROUGH OF ENFIELD 

PLANNING COMMITTEE Date: 5 November 2019 

Report of: 

Head of Planning 

Contact Officer: 
Andy Higham  
Evie Learman 
0208-132- 3873 

Ward:  

Winchmore Hill 

Application Number: 19/01285/FUL Category: Major 

LOCATION:  Travis Perkins, 699 Green Lanes, London, N21 3RS 

PROPOSAL:   Demolition of existing buildings and erection of a part 4-storey, part 5-storey building 
comprising employment floorspace with associated trade area, storage and showroom at ground floor 
level (Sui Generis) and 18 no. residential units above (8 x 1-bed, 8 x 2-bed, 2 x 3-bed); including 
landscaping, car parking to rear; and associated works. 

Applicant Name & Address: 
Travis Perkins 
C/O Agent 

Agent Name & Address: 
Ms Angie Fenton 
Quod 
Ingeni Building 
17 Broadwick Street 
London 
W1F 0DE 

RECOMMENDATION: That subject to the completion of a S106 Agreement to secure the obligations 
as set out in the report, the Head of Development Management / the Planning Decisions Manager be 
authorised to GRANT planning permission subject to conditions. 

Note for Members: The scope of the application would be considered to be a major development 
and as such is referable to committee. 

Page 9 Agenda Item 5



 
Ref: 19/01285/FUL    LOCATION:  699 Green Lanes, London, N21 3RS,  
 

 

 
 

  

Reproduced by permission of Ordnance Survey 
on behalf of HMSO. ©Crown Copyright and 
database right 2013. All Rights Reserved.    
Ordnance Survey License number 100019820 

Scale 1:1250 North 

 

Page 10



Suggested Conditions  
 
1  Time Limited Permission 
 
2  Drawing Numbers 
  Development to be carried out in accordance with approved plans. 
 
3 Use Class  

To be Sui Generis at ground floor (trade counter with showroom and 
temporary storage area for products) and residential on the floors above; any 
changes require consent of the Local Planning Authority. 

 
4  Materials  

Sample panel and a schedule of materials to be used in all external 
elevations including walls, doors, windows and front entrances within the 
development. 
 

5 Surfacing Materials  
Details and design of the surfacing materials to be used within the 
development including footpaths, shared surfaces, access roads, parking 
areas and road markings. 

 
6  Landscaping  

• Details of trees, shrubs, grass and all other soft landscaped areas of 
internal and external amenity spaces to be planted on the site; 

• Where feasible biodiversity enhancement interventions incorporated into 
the design; and 

• Any planting which dies, becomes severely damaged or diseased within 
five years of planting shall be replaced with new planting in accordance 
with the approved details.  

 
7 Tree Protection  

Scheme for the protection of the trees (in the root protection area) in relation 
to the site and neighbouring properties, in accordance with BS5837:2012, 
including a tree protection plan (TPP) and an Arboricultural Method Statement 
(AMS). 

 
8 Nesting Boxes 

Details of bird and / or bat nesting boxes / bricks. 
 
9 Biodiversity Enhancement 

Biodiversity enhancement measures to be incorporated into the proposed 
landscape works. 
 

10  Operational / Service Management Plan – Commercial Element 
 
Operational/Service Management Plan including details of: 

1. How delivery vehicles will be managed to ensure there is no 
occurrences of vehicle idling within close proximity to the site; 

2. How vehicle deliveries will be managed to ensure there is no undue 
noise and disturbance to neighbouring occupiers as a result of the 
deliveries; and 

3. Procedure for dealing with noise complaints arising from neighbouring 
occupiers. 

Page 11



 
11 BREEAM  

‘Outstanding’ rating to be achieved. 
 

12  Details of Vehicular Access Modifications including Alterations to Cycle 
Infrastructure. 

 
13 Cycle Storage – Residential Element  

Details of the siting and design of secure covered cycle parking facilities. 
 
14  Cycle Parking – Commercial Element 
 
15 Pedestrian Pathways  

Details of pedestrian pathways within the curtilage of the site. 
 
16 Car Parking Provision for Electric Vehicles (20%) 
 
17 Details of On-site Car Parking Allocation Policy 
 
18 Recycling Storage 
 
19 Opening / Operational Hours 

Opening hours of the commercial element, including deliveries, are restricted 
to 7.00am to 7.00pm Monday to Saturday and 9.00am to 4.00pm Sundays & 
Bank Holidays. 

 
20  Previously Unidentified Contamination  
 
21  Piling, Deep Foundations, and Boreholes 
 
22  Construction Management Plan (CMP) 

Construction Management Plan in accordance with London Best Practice 
Guidance. 

 
23 Subdivision  

Building shall not be occupied by more than one business at any one time. 
 
24 Acoustic Report 

Acoustic report to be submitted. 
 
25 External Lighting 
 
26 Secure by Design 
 Certificate of Compliance where feasible. 
 
27 Dwelling Mix / Floor Areas 

The dwelling mix and flor areas of each unit as approved (8 x 1-bed, 8 x 2-
bed, 2 x 3-bed), shall be delivered unless otherwise agreed by the Local 
Planning Authority. 
 

28 Balcony Screening 
Details of the balcony screening shall be submitted to the Local Planning 
Authority. 
 

Page 12



 

29 Noise Control 
Details demonstrating how the development will be constructed / adapted so 
as to provide sufficient air-borne and structure-borne sound insulation against 
externally generated noise and vibration. 
 

30 Carbon Reduction  
 
31 Energy Performance  

Energy Performance Certificate accompanied by a Built Energy Performance 
Assessment shall be submitted. 

 
32  Green Procurement and Construction Plan 

Green Procurement and Construction Plan detailing how the development 
has sought to minimise the environmental impact of the scheme. 
 

33  SUDS Strategy 
Sustainable Strategy shall be submitted with full details of Suitability; 
Quantity; Quality; and Functionality, in line with DMD 61. 

 
34  SUDS – Final Strategy 

Final SuDS Strategy to be submitted, which includes final sizes, cross 
sections, specifications and functionality calculations (where necessary).  

 
35 Water Pollution 
 
36 Rainwater Recycling System 

Provision of Rainwater Recycling System. 
 
37 Green Roofs 
 Provision of green / brown roofs. 
 
38 Details of Water Efficiency Measures 
 
39 Connection to District Heating Network 

Further investigation into whether a future link up would be feasible and 
whether a temporary boiler cold be provided in the meanwhile. 
 

40 Energy Statement 
Energy Statement demonstrating how the development will provide or no less 
than 35% reduction on the total CO2 emissions arising from the operation of a 
development and its services over Part L of Building Regs 2013. 

 
41 Energy Performance Certificate 

Submission of Energy Performance Certificate. 
 
 

 

 

 

Page 13



1. Executive Summary 
 
1.1 The report seeks approval to a scheme involving the demolition of existing 

buildings and erection of a part 4-storey, part 5-storey building comprising 
employment floorspace with associated trade area, storage and showroom at 
ground floor level (Sui Generis) and 18 residential units above (8 x 1-bed, 8 x 
2-bed, 2 x 3-bed); including landscaping, car parking to rear; and associated 
works. The proposal as stated above would replace an existing builders’ 
merchants which is currently occupied by Travis Perkins. 

 
1.2 The builders’ merchants would be replaced by a ‘Toolstation’ branch which is 

considered to be a more compatible use with the proposed residential 
element on the site. Although the existing and proposed use class for the 
commercial element on the site is Sui Generis, in order to ensure that the 
ground floor element continues to be compatible with the residential units on 
the floors above a condition is recommended which details specifically what 
type of use is acceptable on the site. Any future use proposing to vary this 
would then be subject to an application to the planning authority, in order for 
an assessment to be made. 

 
1.3 Floor Area Breakdown 
 
1.3.1 The existing site area is 0.14 ha and the total overall floorspace (residential 

and commercial) proposed is 1,866 sqm. 
 
Commercial Floor Area 
 

1.3.2 The proposed development would result in a reduction in commercial 
floorspace as follows: 
 
Site area: 0.14 ha 
Existing commercial area: 656 sqm 
Proposed commercial area: 351 sqm 
 

1.3.3 As mentioned elsewhere in this report whilst there would be a reduction of 
305 sqm of commercial floor area, the nature of the builders’ merchant is 
operationally different to the ‘Toolstation’ and it is noted there would be no 
loss of jobs resulting from the reduction in commercial floor area.  It is also 
noted that the existing builders’ merchant has a significant amount of external 
storage areas and sheds which is included in the existing floor area 
calculation.  
 

   Residential Floor Area 
 
1.3.4 The proposed residential area is 1,515sqm and would be made up of 18 units 

over 4 floors (first to fourth floor) with unit mix as follows: 
 
First floor 

 
5 units comprising: 

 
- 2 x 1-bed, 2-person 
- 1 x 2-bed, 3-person 
- 1 x 2-bed, 4-person 
- 1 x 3-bed, 5-person 

Page 14



  
Second floor 

 
6 units comprising: 

 
- 3 x 1-bed, 2-person 
- 3 x 2-bed, 3-person 

 
Third floor 

 
6 units comprising: 

 
- 3 x 1-bed, 2-person 
- 3 x 2-bed, 3-person 

 
Fourth floor 

 
1 unit comprising: 

 
- 1 x 3-bed, 5-person 

 
1.4 The reasons for recommending approval are: 
 

i) The principle of the proposed development is acceptable in that it 
would be consistent with the objectives of national, regional and local 
policy in terms of supporting and securing sustainable growth and 
employment opportunities within the borough, delivering homes in a 
largely residential area, while retaining the existing number of jobs; 

 
ii) The site would retain commercial floorspace at ground floor level and 

provide additional housing stock for the borough by providing 18 
additional units including a 36% affordable offer; 

 
iii) The development would make better use of the site by retaining a 

commercial element whilst providing housing including an affordable 
element; 

 
iv) The development will provide good quality residential units in a good 

location; each of the residential units will be double aspect and have 
private amenity space with 135sqm of communal amenity space also 
being provided at first floor level; 

 
v) The development is acceptable for this location in terms of its 

appearance, size, siting, scale and design and is an improvement to 
the existing building; 

 
vi) The development will improve the visual element of the streetscene, 

and will also provide a more coherent link between the existing 
buildings to the north and the Grade ll listed building to the south; 

 
vii) The development would create 9 on-site parking spaces (including 2 

accessible spaces) which would reduce impact upon on-street 
parking. 28 on-site cycle spaces would also be created which would 
encourage sustainable methods of transport. As such the 

Page 15



development is acceptable in terms of parking, traffic generation and 
servicing; and 

 
viii)  Whilst the commercial footprint would reduce, there would be no loss 

of employment as a result of the development. 
 

ix) The development will not have an unacceptable impact on 
neighbouring residential amenity given the distances between the site 
and neighbouring occupiers; 

 
x) The developers will pay a financial contribution towards improving the 

cycle highway opposite the site, thus encouraging more sustainable 
methods of transport; and 

 
xi)  The sustainability credentials of the building will be improved by use of 

measures such as: Improved thermal efficiency, external lighting 
optimised for maximum efficiency, internal & external LED Lighting, 
Building Management System Controls and high efficiency motors. 

 
2. Site and Surroundings 
 
2.1 The subject site, measuring around 0.14ha, comprises a builders’ merchant 

and currently falls within a Sui Generis use class.  The builders’ merchant is 
characterised by 2 warehouse type buildings with a height equivalent to 
approximately 2-storey’s in comparison to the adjacent mixed-use building (a 
four-storey building with commercial at ground floor and residential on the 3 
floors above) to the north. Overall the site contains 2 warehouse buildings, 
ancillary showroom, trade counter, external storage area, service yard and 
car parking. 

 
2.2 The site does not fall within a Conservation Area and does not contain any 

listed buildings, however to the south of the site is a Grade ll building last in 
use as a police station (the ‘old police station’ building) and this building and 
the wider site are currently subject to a separate application for proposed 
residential units.  

 
2.3 Residential properties are located to the rear of the site with the rear gardens 

of (consecutively numbered) No’s 4, 5, 6 and 7 facing the site; an alleyway 
lies in between the rear gardens of these properties and the rear boundary of 
the subject site. 

 
2.4 The area to the north is characterised by commercial at ground floor level and 

flats on three floors above; this area to the north widens out onto a local 
shopping district (‘The Broadway’) with building heights predominantly around 
2-4 storeys. 
 

2.5 The main orientation and accesses point to the site face east onto Green 
Lanes via a double width crossover. There is also a pedestrian entrance. Both 
the vehicular and pedestrian entrances are comprised of railings and/or wall. 

 
2.6 The site lies adjacent to a Local Centre as designated within the Local Plan. 

The site is located wholly within Flood Zone 1 which is assessed as having a 
less than 1 in 1,000 annual probability of flooding and is therefore of low 
probability. 

 

Page 16



3. Proposal 
 
3.1 The proposal is for the demolition of existing buildings and erection of a part 

4-storey, part 5-storey building comprising employment floorspace with 
associated trade area, storage and showroom at ground floor level (Sui 
Generis) and 18 residential units above (8 x 1-bed, 8 x 2-bed, 2 x 3-bed); 
including landscaping, car parking to rear; and associated works. The current 
planned occupier of the ground floor commercial premises is ‘Toolstation’ 
which is a subsidiary of Travis Perkins. ‘Toolstation’ supplies tools, 
accessories and building supplies to the trade, home improvers and self-
builders. 

 
3.2 More specifically the proposal comprises:  
 

• Demolition of existing builders’ merchants building and sheds; 
• Construction of new part-4, part-5 storey building which will also 

extend to the eastern boundary providing a two-storey element; 
• Rationalisation of the front street facing elevation to align with the 

existing neighbouring property north to provide more visual coherency; 
• Soft landscaping to the communal amenity area at the rear of the 

building and an area of shrub planting adjacent to the car parking 
spaces will be provided along with trees in planters; 

• Private balconies to all units; and 
• A retail style frontage to the ground floor commercial element to be 

more in keeping with the adjacent mixed-use buildings to the east. 
 
3.3 The applicant has proposed opening hours for the commercial element of 

6.00am to 8.00pm Monday to Saturday, 9.00am to 4.00pm Sunday and 
7.00am to 7.00pm Bank Holidays, however being mindful of the existing 
hours of the builders’ merchants and the close proximity of the proposed 
residential element, officers are of the view that the following hours would be 
more appropriate: 7.00am to 7.00pm Monday to Saturday and 9.00am to 
4.00pm Sundays & Bank Holidays. 

 
3.4 The existing use of the site (Sui Generis) would be retained however the 

specific details of the use will be controlled by planning condition. 
 
3.5 The application documents state that 5 people are currently employed at the 

site and this will remain the same for the new commercial unit. 
 
3.6 The current application has been through the formal pre-application process 

with the Council prior to the current submission. 
 
3.7 The pre-application response is summarised as follows: 
  

• The proposal considered acceptable in principle; 
• The height of the proposed building would need to consider the 

adjacent building heights and be sensitive to the listed building to the 
south; 

• The treatment of the south-eastern corner could ensure the listed 
building would not be unduly impacted; 

• The materiality of the proposal could further ensure the building sits 
unobtrusively within the streetscene and is sensitive in terms of 
heritage impact; 

Page 17



• The additional vehicle crossover should not result in any visibility 
issues for vehicles egressing the site; 

• The constraints of the site in terms of being able to provide car parking 
were acknowledged; a parking ratio of 0.5 was accepted; and 

• Units should be double aspect and the dwelling mix should be varied 
to reflect local need. 

 
3.8 Meetings with the Conservation Area Advisory Group were also held during 

the pre-application process and these resulted in some modifications 
including a setback of the front elevation and the commercial element having 
a more retail orientated design. 

 
4. Relevant Planning History 
 
4.1  15/00210/ADVERT - Installation of 1 x non-illuminated fascia sign and 3 x 

non-illuminated signs to front. Relates to Planning Application Reference 
15/04253/ADV) 

 
4.2  15/04253/ADV - Installation of 1 x non-illuminated fascia sign and 3 x non-

illuminated signs to front. 
 
4.3  AD/84/0049 - 2 Name signs. 
 
4.4  TP/84/0527 – Timber yard. 
 
5.  Summary of Key Reasons for Recommendation 
 

i) The principle of the proposed development is acceptable in that it 
would be consistent with the objectives of national, regional and local 
policy in terms of supporting and securing sustainable growth and 
employment opportunities within the borough, delivering homes in a 
largely residential area, while retaining the existing number of jobs; 

 
ii) The site would retain commercial floorspace at ground floor level and 

provide additional housing stock for the borough, including 18 new 
homes, 36% of which would be affordable; 

 
iii) The development would make better use of the site by retaining a 

commercial element whilst providing housing including an affordable 
element; 

 
iv) The development will provide good quality residential units in a 

sustainable location; each of the residential units will be double aspect 
and have private amenity space with 135sqm of communal amenity 
space also being provided at first floor level; 

 
v) The development is considered acceptable for this location in terms of 

its appearance, size, siting, scale and design and is an improvement 
to the existing building; 

 
vi) The development would improve the visual element of the 

streetscene, and will also provide a more coherent link between the 

Page 18



existing buildings to the north and the Grade ll listed building to the 
south; 

 
vii) The development would create 9 on-site parking spaces (including 2 

accessible spaces) which would reduce impact upon on-street 
parking. 28 on-site cycle spaces would also be created which would 
encourage sustainable methods of transport. As such the 
development is acceptable in terms of parking, traffic generation and 
servicing; and 

 
viii)  Whilst the commercial footprint would reduce, there would be no loss 

of employment as a result of the development. 
 

ix) The development will not have an unacceptable impact on 
neighbouring residential amenity given the distances between the site 
and neighbouring occupiers; 

 
x) The developers will pay a financial contribution towards improving the 

cycle highway opposite the site, thus encouraging more sustainable 
methods of transport; and 

 
xi)  The sustainability of the building will be improved by use of 

measures such as: Improved thermal efficiency, external lighting 
optimised for maximum efficiency, internal & external LED Lighting, 
Building Management System Controls and high efficiency motors. 

 
6. Consultation  

 
Public Response:  
 

6.1 101 neighbours were consulted in relation to the application in addition to a 
site notice and press advert being placed. Responses from 6 neighbours has 
been received, with material considerations relating to the following: 

 
1. Housing Need;  
2. Pollution;  
3. Size / Height of the Development;  
4. Impact on light / Privacy / Overlooking;  
5. Impact on Parking; and  
6. Screening / Landscaping.  

 
6.2 These are responded to below and further discussion is within the 

assessment section of the report: 
 

1. Housing Need 
 
Concern has been raised that Winchmore Hill already has enough housing for 
a relatively small area 
 
Officer Response - In order to meet the Councils housing targets and those 
set out in the new London Plan and will have to significantly increase housing 
delivery across the borough. 

 
 
 

Page 19



2. Pollution 
 
Concern has been raised in relation to the impact on air quality resulting from 
increased traffic 

 
Officer Response - An Air Quality Assessment (AQA) was carried out and 
submitted with the planning application. In addition, there will be conditions 
attached to any approval, as such further controlling dust emissions during 
construction. 

 
3. Size / Height of the Development 

 
Concern has been raised with the proposed height being intrusive to existing 
residents and that the proposal is an overdevelopment of site. 

 
Officer Response - Substantial changes have been made to the height and 
layout of the building during the pre-application stage. The scale and 
massing of the proposals follows the proportions of the buildings along 
Green Lanes, and the window heights have been designed in line with the 
window and parapet heights of Compton House, to replicate the existing 
streetscene 
 
In terms of density, given the location of the site it is important to maximise 
the housing potential rather than under develop the site.  

 
4. Impact on Light / Privacy / Overlooking 
 
Concern has been raised about overlooking into the rear windows of Coombe 
Corner properties 
 
Officer Response - The rear facing windows in the properties on Coombe 
Corner are a distance of approximately 40m from the rear facing windows in 
the proposed residential units. Council policy requires a distance of up to 30 
metres for facing rooms, meanwhile GLA guidance recommends a distance of 
18– 21 metres. In addition, the rear windows of the proposed development 
will be over 21 metres from the rear boundary garden wall of these properties. 
These distances are considered sufficient to ensure that privacy and 
overlooking will not affect existing residents. 
 
In relation to impact on light, a Daylight Assessment was submitted with the 
planning application. The results of the Vertical Sky Component (VSC) 
assessment show that none of the windows at Coombe Corner will 
experience noticeable reductions in daylight and that all windows will retain a 
level VSC within 2% of their former value. Some windows show an 
improvement in VSC, because the proposed development is located further 
away than the existing buildings.  It is noted that the PPG has been recently 
updated to allow a more flexible approach to be applied when considering the 
daylight effects of a planning application. Specifically, paragraph 66-007-
20190722 states that lower daylight and sunlight levels at some windows may 
be unavoidable if new developments are in areas of higher density, close to 
historic buildings or in urban locations.  In these instances, it is expected that 
good design will help make the best use of the site and maintain acceptable 
living standards. 
 

Page 20



5. Impact on Parking  
 
Concern has been raised that the development will have inadequate levels of 
parking and the development will result in too much traffic. 
 
Officer Response - The number of car parking spaces proposed are in line 
with Policy 6.2 of the London Plan noting that London Plan states that car free 
development should be the starting point for all development proposals that 
are well connected by public transport. In addition, the Council’s Transport 
team have worked closely with the applicants to ensure the scheme is 
acceptable in terms of car / cycle parking provision, vehicular movements 
within the site and highway safety in terms of access / egress.  
 
6. Screening / Landscaping  
 
Concern has been raised in relation to the lack of tree / hedge planting for 
screening 
 
Officer Response - Opportunities for landscaping are limited, however the 
application proposes soft landscaping measures such as shrubs planting and 
placing bark chippings at the rear. The communal amenity area will also be 
landscaped with shrub planting and trees. The landscaping works will be 
subject to condition so the Council can ensure that proposed landscaping 
works are satisfactory. 

 
External Consultees:  
 

6.3 Thames Water: No objection. Informative suggested in relation to 
groundwater discharges.  
 

6.4  London Fire Brigade: no objection  
 
6.5 Conservation Advisory Group (CAG): no objection.  
 
6.6 Metropolitan Police (Secure by Design): Recommend the development 

achieves a Certificate of Compliance.  
 
Internal Consultees: 

 
6.7  Traffic & Transportation: No objection. 
 
6.8 Urban Design: no objection; changes to the materiality of the undercroft 

suggested. 
 
6.9 Tree Officer: No objection.  

 
6.10 SuDS Officer: Additional information sought in relation to SuDS details.  
   
6.11 Environmental Health Officer: No objection.        
 
7.  Relevant Policies 
 
7.1 London Plan (2016) 
 
  2.6  Outer London: vision and strategy 

Page 21



  2.7  Outer London: economy 
  2.8  Outer London: transport 
  2.16  Strategic outer London development centres 
  3.1  Ensuring equal life chances for all  
  3.3  Increasing housing supply 
  3.4  Optimising housing potential  
  3.5   Quality and design of housing developments 
  3.8   Housing choice 
  3.9   Mixed and balanced communities 
  3.11   Affordable housing targets 
  3.12   Negotiating affordable housing 
  3.13   Affordable housing thresholds 
 4.1  Developing London’s economy 

4.12  Improving opportunities for all 
5.1  Climate change mitigation 
5.2  Minimising carbon dioxide emissions 
5.3  Sustainable design and construction 
5.5  Decentralise energy networks 
5.6  Decentralised energy in development proposals 
5.7  Renewable energy 
5.8  Innovative energy technologies 
5.9  Overheating and cooling 
5.10  Urban greening 
5.11  Green roofs and development site environs 
5.12  Flood risk management 
5.13  Sustainable drainage 
5.14   Water quality and wastewater infrastructure 
6.3  Assessing effects of development on transport capacity 
6.9   Cycling 
6.10   Walking 
6.11  Smoothing traffic flow and tackling congestion 
6.12   Road network capacity 
6.13  Parking 
7.1   Lifetime neighbourhoods 

  7.2   An inclusive development 
  7.3   Designing out crime 
  7.4        Local character 
  7.5   Public realm 
  7.6   Architecture 
  7.14  Improving air quality 
  7.15  Reducing and managing noise, improving and enhancing  

 the acoustic environment and promoting appropriate 
soundscapes 

  7.19   Biodiversity and access to nature 
 
7.1.1 The London Plan - Draft  
 
7.1.2 A draft London Plan was published on 29 November 2017 for consultation 

purposes with a deadline for consultation of 2 March 2018. The draft plan is a 
material consideration in determining applications but is likely to carry little or 
no weight until there is a response to consultation submissions or until after its 
examination. The following policies are of particular relevance: 

 
GG1  Building strong and inclusive communities 
GG2   Making the best use of land 

Page 22



GG4   Delivering the homes Londoners need 
D1B   Optimising site capacity through the design-led approach  
GG5   Growing a good economy 
D2   Delivering good design 
D4   Housing quality and standards 
H1   Increasing housing supply 

 
7.2 Core Strategy  
 
      SO1  Enabling and focusing change 
      SO2  Environmental sustainability 
      SO6  Maximising economic potential 
      SO7  Employment and skills 
      SO8  Transportation and accessibility 
      SO10  Built environment 
      CP2  Housing supply and locations for new homes 
      CP3  Affordable housing 
      CP4  Housing quality 
      CP5  Housing types 
      CP9  Supporting community cohesion 
      CP13  Promoting economic prosperity 
      CP16  Taking part in economic success and improving skills 
      CP17  Town Centres 
      CP18  Delivering shopping provision across Enfield 
      CP20   Sustainable energy use and energy infrastructure 
      CP21 Delivering sustainable water supply, drainage and sewerage 

infrastructure 
      CP22 Delivering sustainable waste management 
      CP24     The road network 
      CP25  Pedestrians and cyclists 
      CP26   Public transport 
      CP28   Managing flood risk through development 
      CP30 Maintaining and improving the quality of the built and open 

environment 
      CP31 Built and landscape heritage 
      CP32     Pollution 
      CP36  Biodiversity 
      CP46  Infrastructure contributions  

 
7.3 Development Management Document  
 
      DMD 1 Affordable Housing on sites capable of providing 10 units or 

more 
      DMD 3   Providing a mix of different sized homes 
      DMD 6   Residential character 
           DMD 8   General standards for new residential development 
           DMD 9   Amenity space 
      DMD 10  Distancing 
      DMD 20 Locally Significant Industrial Sites 
      DMD 22 Loss of employment outside of designated areas 
      DMD 23     New employment development 
      DMD 28 Large Local Centres, Small Local Centres and Local Parades 
      DMD 37     Achieving high quality and design-led development 
      DMD 38     Design process 
      DMD 39     The design of business premises  

Page 23



      DMD 44  Preserving and enhancing heritage assets 
      DMD 45 Parking standards and layout  
      DMD 46     Vehicle crossovers and dropped kerbs 
      DMD 47     Access, new roads and servicing  
      DMD 48     Transport assessments  
      DMD 49  Sustainable design and construction statements 
      DMD 50     Environmental assessment methods  
      DMD 51     Energy efficiency standards 
      DMD 53    Low and zero carbon technology  
      DMD 56     Heating and cooling 
      DMD 57     Responsible sourcing of materials, waste minimisation and 

green procurement 
      DMD 58     Water efficiency 
           DMD 59  Avoiding and reducing flood risk 
           DMD 60  Assessing flood risk 
           DMD 61  Managing surface water 
      DMD 64 Pollution control and assessment 
      DMD 65 Air quality 
      DMD 66 Land contamination and instability 
      DMD 68 Noise 
           DMD 69  Light pollution 
      DMD 70  Water quality 
      DMD 73  Children’s play space 
           DMD 78  Nature conservation 
      DMD 79  Ecological enhancements 
      DMD 80     Trees on development sites 
      DMD 81  Landscaping 
 
7.4     Other Material Considerations 
  
  - National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 2018 (revised)     
  - National Planning Practice Guidelines (NPPG) 
  - Mayor of London Housing SPG 

-  LBE S106 SPD 
-  Enfield Strategic Housing Market Assessment 

  -  Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 
  - Enfield Characterisation Study  
  - Manual for Streets  
  - Mayors Transport Strategy (May 2010) 

- Revised Technical Standards for Footway Crossovers (April 2013) 
- Refuse and Recycle Storage Guide Enfield (ENV 08/162) 
- Travel Planning for new development in London 2011 (TfL) 
- Manual for Streets 1 & 2, Inclusive Mobility 2005 (DfT) 

 
8. Assessment  

 
8.1 The main issues arising from this proposal for Members to consider are:  
 

1. Principle of Development;  
2. Viability / Affordable Housing; 
3. Design and Impact on Character of Surrounding Area; 
4. Standard of Accommodation and Proposed Mix of Units; 
5. Amenity Impact;  
6. Transport / Refuse, Waste and Recycling; 
7. SuDS;  

Page 24



8. Sustainability; 
9. Biodiversity; 
10. Trees / Landscaping; 
11. Planning Obligations; and 
12. Community Infrastructure Levy. 

 
9. Principle of Development 

 
Strategic Housing Need 

 
9.1 In broad terms, the proposal is consistent with the aims of the adopted and 

emerging London Plan, the NPPF and policies within the Core Strategy which 
seek to support development which contributes to the strategic housing needs 
of Greater London, including the provision of affordable housing. However, it 
is equally important that other relevant planning considerations are 
considered, including reduction of commercial floor area; design of the 
proposed building; character of the area and how the development fits within 
that; impact in terms of amenity; traffic/transport and parking issues; and 
sustainability matters, are taken into account. 

 
Design and Appearance 
 

9.2 The site is not protected in terms of being located within a Conservation Area 
however a Grade ll listed building lies to the north (the former Winchmore Hill 
Police Station building). Given the condition of the existing building and the 
lack of protection afforded to the site the principle of demolition is considered 
acceptable. 

 
9.3 However the design of the new building has been mindful of the proximity of 

the listed police station and this has influenced key details of the design which 
is discussed in further detail in the assessment below.   

 
 Retention of Commercial Floorspace / Employment Use 
 
9.4 In terms of land use, London Plan Policy 2.7 seeks to to address constraints 

and opportunities in the economic growth of outer London so that it can rise 
above its long-term economic trends.  

 
9.5 In addition London Plan Policy 4.1 seeks to promote and enable the 

continued development of a strong, sustainable and increasingly diverse 
economy across all parts of London, and support and promote outer London 
as an attractive location for national government as well as businesses. 

 
9.6 Core Strategy Policy 13 notes that the Council will protect and improve the 

borough’s employment offer and will seek to maintain the competitiveness of 
employment sectors that are well established and successful in Enfield by 
providing support and investment to existing companies to facilitate them 
remaining in the borough.  

 
9.7 Meanwhile Core Strategy Policy 16 seeks to promote and protect local 

employment whilst Policy DMD 22 seeks to protect employment by resisting 
the loss of or reduction of employment within the borough. 

 
9.8 The development would result in a reduction in commercial floorspace of 305 

sqm however there would be no corresponding loss of jobs, with the existing 

Page 25



and proposed employee number being 5. This is because the proposed ‘Tool 
Station’ would have a different operational style, requiring less floor area 
including less external storage area and sheds. 
 

9.9 The existing commercial floor area is a builders’ merchants, use class Sui 
Generis measuring 656sqm. The proposed commercial floor area would be 
351 sqm and occupied by a ‘Toolstation’ which describes itself as a retailer, 
supplying tools, accessories and building supplies to the trade, home improvers 
and self-builders (also Sui Generis). 

 
9.10 The applicant has confirmed that the driver of the scheme is the provision of 

residential units and as such the provision of a ‘Toolstation’ use at ground 
floor is to facilitate a more compatible use with the residential element than 
the existing builders’ merchants. Both the existing and proposed use are Sui 
Generis however conditions are recommended for the proposed Sui Generis 
use to ensure there are restrictions in terms of what the commercial use can 
be used for (i.e. specific percentages in terms what amount of the floor area 
can be used as trade counter/showroom/storage etc). This is to ensure the 
Council retain control over the commercial element and are able to ensure it 
is not occupied in the future by a use incompatible with the residential units 
above and in the immediate vicinity. 

 
9.11 The proposal would be wholly consistent with these policies. Furthermore, the 

comprehensive redevelopment of the site would raise the visual quality of the 
area and replace an unattractive builders’ merchants with a building that is 
proportionate in scale and consistent in terms of being a mixed-use 
development with nearby buildings in particular, those lying adjacent to the 
south. The scheme will therefore involve the redevelopment of a prominent 
site, provide investment in terms of significantly upgrading the commercial 
element of the building, retain local employment and provide housing.  
 

9.12 It is clear therefore that in principle, the redevelopment of the site is 
compatible with national, regional and local policy. As such, given the 
significant improvements that would occur as a result of the development 
together with there being no loss of employment, the application is supported 
in principle, subject to further assessment as mentioned above. 

 
10.  Viability 
 

Affordable Housing 
 
10.1  Affordable housing is housing designed to meet the needs of households 

whose income is insufficient to allow them access to “decent and appropriate 
housing in their borough” (para.5.17 Core Strategy). All sites should be Core 
Policy compliant, subject to viability and in this regard, approximately 7 units 
within the scheme should be provided as affordable units in the absence of 
viability justification to the contrary. The viability report submitted with the 
proposal has been independently assessed by a viability assessor and it was 
determined that the scheme is not viable, i.e. the scheme cannot afford 
affordable housing. 

 
10.2 However the viability assessors also carried out a further assessment in the 

form of a sensitivity analysis, which demonstrated scheme performance in the 
event that sales values increased by between 5% and 20%. This showed that 
there was potential for the scheme to generate a surplus if sales values 

Page 26



increased, and as such an early/late stage review mechanism is 
recommended for inclusion in the section 106 legal agreement in order to 
ensure the Council is able to appropriately benefit from any increase in sales 
values at occupation stage, should they increase. 

 
10.3 As things stand whilst the scheme has currently been independently 

assessed as being unviable it nonetheless proposes to provide the following 
affordable housing: 
 
i) 36% affordable, all shared ownership (6 units) provided as 17 

habitable rooms out of 48, as follows: 
 

• 2 x 1 bed (33%) 
• 3 x 2 bed (50%) 
• 1 x 3 bed (17%) 

 
10.4 These units would be provided in the left-hand core at first, second and third 

floor level. Whilst all of the affordable housing units would be provided in one 
core, that core will be mixed with the private units. As such there will be no 
difference between the affordable units and the private units.  

 
10.5 Whilst the proposed affordable housing offer is not policy compliant in terms 

of quantity and tenure, in this instance the applicants have demonstrated that 
the scheme is not viable enough to provide affordable housing. Given this 
context the applicant is nonetheless offering 6 units (by habitable rooms) but 
as a Shared Ownership tenure. As Shared Ownership is more valuable and 
doesn’t require additional cores to be managed separately, (and is therefore 
cheaper to build) this type of tenure would enable the maximum amount of 
affordable housing to be provided on this small, constrained site. As there is 
little in the way of affordable housing in the local vicinity the development 
would also be delivering for a local need. 

 
10.6 Given the Council’s policy position that affordable housing should be provided 

where viable, and the independently assessed viability report shows that the 
scheme is not viable, the offer of 36% affordable provided as 17 habitable 
rooms on a shared ownership tenure, is considered acceptable in this 
instance. 

 
11.  Design and Impact on Character of Surrounding Area 

 
11.1 In terms of overall, general design principles, Core Strategy Policy 30 

requires all developments to be high quality and design led, having special 
regard to their context. Whilst Core Strategy Policy 9 requires proposals to 
promote attractive, safe, accessible, inclusive and sustainable 
neighbourhoods as well as connecting and supporting communities and 
reinforcing local distinctiveness. 
 

11.2 Meanwhile Policy DMD 37 seeks to achieve high quality design and requires 
development to be suitably designed for its intended function that is 
appropriate to its context and surroundings. The policy also notes that 
development should capitalise on opportunities to improve an area and sets 
out urban design objectives relating to character, continuity and enclosure, 
quality of the public realm, ease of movement, legibility, adaptability and 
durability, and diversity. 

Page 27



 
11.3 In terms of business premises making efficient use of land and maximising 

their contribution to the urban environment, policy DMD 39 outlines a list of 
design criteria which proposals for business premises should seek to adhere 
to, including the requirement to positively address the public realm; clearly 
differentiate between public and private areas; provide inclusive access 
arrangements; sensitively screen and locate servicing, parking and refuse (to 
the rear where possible). Mitigate potential negative impacts in surrounding 
uses; ensure massing and facades are visually interesting; respect the 
character of the surrounding area; and use high quality materials that can 
create, enhance or preserve the local character and identity. 

 
 Setting of Heritage Asset (old Winchmore Hill Police Station) 
 
11.4 Section 66(1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 

1990 requires the Local Planning Authority (in this instance the decision 
maker) to have special regard to the desirability of preserving a listed building 
or its setting. In addition, considerable weight must also be given to the 
desirability of preserving the listed building. The National Policy Planning 
Framework (NPPF) notes that there is a strong presumption against granting 
permission for development that would harm the special interest of the listed 
building, although the presumption can be overcome if the harm is mitigated 
or it can be demonstrated that the public benefit resulting from the 
development would outweigh the harm. 

 
11.5 The site is located in close proximity to the listed Police Station building and is 

of a reasonably substantial size in comparison to the existing builders’ 
merchant. As such, it is inevitable that the application proposal will have some 
impact on the setting of the Police Station. However, given the unappealing 
appearance of the builders’ merchant it is considered there will be no erosion 
of the significance of the former police station. More specifically it is likely the 
proposal will improve the streetscene and as such the setting of the Police 
Station when compared to the existing building which results in a jarring 
appearance.  

Summary of Setting of Heritage Asset 
 
11.6 The new building has been designed with regard to its proximity to the listed 

building to the south. Given the former police station yard is enclosed within 
tall boundary wall which separates the listed building from the application site, 
the new building will not adversely impact the police station. Furthermore, a 
spatial buffer will remain between the listed building and the new building; this 
will be further facilitated by the stepping back of the south-eastern corner of 
the new building to allow for a clear view of the front and north elevations of 
the former police station.  

 
11.7 It is further noted that the tall boundary walls around the yard of the police 

station reflect part of the former function of the station as a place of 
confinement. As such the site has a self-contained nature, which was there to 
serve the local community and preserve law and order, not necessarily to be 
an important integrated element within the streetscene. Given all of the 
above, it is considered the application proposals will preserve the character 
and appearance of the listed building and its setting.  

 
 

Page 28



Legibility / Character 
 
11.8 The existing site is currently operating as a builders’ merchants and is 

comprised of an L-shaped warehouse structure and sheds. The character and 
form of the street frontage in the immediate vicinity of the old police station is 
varied and over time has resulted in a somewhat aesthetically unappealing 
streetscene. The buildings in this section of the street sit incoherently with 
each other in terms of architectural style, the exception being Holy Trinity 
church opposite and the old police station, which were built in a similar era 
and both of red brick. 

 
11.9 The existing builders’ merchants is considered to contribute to the disjointed 

streetscene. To that end the new building will visually enhance the street by 
finishing off the terrace and filling in the gap with a building of similar 
proportions and of a similar rhythm in terms of fenestration, to the Compton 
Lodge building to the north. However, a gap will be retained between the 
southern elevation of the new building and the high boundary wall of the old 
police station. There will also be a setback to the south-eastern corner of the 
new building, which will serve to further ensure the new building sits 
unobtrusively with its neighbours whilst making a positive contribution to the 
streetscene.  

 
 Summary of Legibility / Character 
 
11.10 Given the above measures, which are being proposed to ensure the existing 

unattractive builders’ merchant structure is replaced with a building more in 
sync with its adjacent neighbours in terms of proportion, detail and materiality, 
the proposal is considered to make a positive contribution to the legibility and 
character of the street and would provide more visual coherence than what 
currently exists. Any perceived reduction in prominence of the listed building 
caused by the new building will be balanced by the improvement to the 
appearance and character of the overall streetscene, which will become more 
uniform and coherent; the character and appearance of the new build will 
represent a transition, architecturally speaking from the former police station 
to Compton Lodge without dominating either building. 

 

Page 29



 
Fig. 1: long ‘verified’ view looking south illustrating how the building will sit within the wider streetscene 
 

Height, Bulk and Massing 
 

11.11 The main bulk of the new building will not exceed the height of the former 
police station to the south or the Compton Lodge building to the north. The 
building includes a fourth floor however this will be a smaller mansard 
element set back sufficiently from the front parapet for it not to be readily 
visible from the street. This will effectively result in the uniform building height 
of the current street frontage being maintained. 
 

11.12 The emphasis of the massing of the proposed building will shift from the 
southern and western section of the site to the eastern (front) section. This 
will result in the building becoming more integrated with buildings either side 
and the wider terrace and there being less emphasis on the section of the site 
nearest to the Coombe Corner residential properties. As mentioned 
elsewhere in this report the new building will also rationalise the existing 
incoherent street frontage by matching the bulk, scale and massing of the 
building adjacent to the north, providing a more uniform and consistent 
appearance. This will result in a building with a more integrated and 
inobtrusive appearance, despite being higher than the existing builders’ 
merchants. This is supported given the significant contribution to the 
streetscene the building will make as well as providing a more pleasing visual 
link between Compton Lodge and the old police station. 

 
 Summary of Height, Bulk and Massing 
 
11.13 As outlined above although the building will be higher than the existing 

builders’ merchants the emphasis of its’ placement will be shifted from the 
southern side and rear section (as shown in Fig. 2 below) more to the front 
section of the site facing the street. This shift facilitates the height of the 
building being able to increase in order to provide a coherent and consistent 
line with adjacent buildings. As such although the building height and overall 
scale will increase, it will be concentrated towards the front of the site 

Page 30



resulting in a visual improvement to the existing scenario. For this reason, the 
proposed building is supported in terms of bulk, scale and massing. 

 

 
Fig.2: Aerial view taken from the Heritage Statement showing the existing emphasis of the site to the south and western 
sides. 
  

Appearance / Materiality 
 

11.14 In terms of the ground floor element, the scheme provides a retail type 
frontage to the commercial unit which is in line with Council policy for 
developments involving the creation of new, or alterations to existing ground 
floor frontages outside of designated industrial areas. Specifically Policy DMD 
40 (Ground Floor Frontages) requires frontages to maintain visual interest 
within the street; to compliment the rhythm, style and proportions of 
surrounding buildings; to obscure no more than 10% of the glazed area at 
one time; to maintain satisfactory window display at all times as well as being 
lit at night; to ensure security shutters are internally mounted and that the 
street number is displayed within the frontage. 
 

11.15 Moving to the upper-floors residential element, the window size has been 
designed so as to better reflect the scale and proportion of the fenestration in 
the buildings to either side, including the former police station. This provides a 
coherent and continuous rhythm to the building which helps it to integrate into 
and sit unobtrusively within the streetscene. 

 
11.16 In terms of materiality the new building will respond to the listed police station 

building by being built in brick. However, as it will sit nearer to the white 

Page 31



rendered Compton Lodge building the brick will be a paler colour to prevent a 
jarring contrast. Details of all of the materials to be used on the building and 
surfaces will be subject to a condition to ensure the Council retain control of 
the quality and choice of materials.  
 
Secure by Design  
 

11.17 The applicants have made contact with Metropolitan Police Service (MPS) 
Designing Out Crime service who have also been consulted by the Council in 
the course of the application. Whilst it is noted there is no explicit policy 
requirement in terms of incorporating Secure by Design measures in the 
development, a condition is recommended requiring the development to seek 
to obtain a Certificate of Compliance where feasible, in order to make the 
development as secure as possible. 

 
Summary of Appearance / Materiality 

 
11.18 The proposed building will be in keeping with nearby properties in terms of 

appearance, detail and materiality. In addition, the ground floor commercial 
element will provide a retail style frontage, activating a prominent and visible 
part of the streetscene which currently does not. The building will largely be 
built in pale brick, in keeping with established London vernacular with the 
setback mansard element being in a more lightweight material to minimise its 
appearance. All materials on the building including brick type/colour, 
window/door frames, surfaces and balcony treatments are subject to being 
approved by the Council. Given the above, the proposed development is 
supported and considered acceptable in terms of its appearance and 
materiality. 

 
Summary of Design and Impact on Character of Surrounding Area 

 
11.19 The proposed development is considered to be appropriate to its setting in 

terms of scale, design, materiality and language. Whilst the building has been 
designed to integrate into the immediate locality it nonetheless would have its 
own individual identity. Given the building will replace an existing builders’ 
merchants it is considered to be a wholly appropriate development in keeping 
with the character and appearance of the surrounding townscape. As the 
building would rationalise the frontage of the terrace and result in a more 
cohesive appearance it would be an improvement in terms of visual amenity 
and provide an improvement to the streetscene in comparison to the existing 
situation. 
 

11.20 In light of this context, it is considered that the proposed building will result in 
a much improved and better-quality building than the existing. Overall the 
proposal is considered to be a well-designed development that will 
significantly improve the appearance of the current unattractive building on 
the site.  

 
11.21 Given the above the proposal is considered acceptable in terms of design and 

impact on the character of surrounding area. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 32



12. Standard of Accommodation and Proposed Mix of Units 
 

Standard of Accommodation / Private Amenity 
 
12.1 Policy 3.5 of the London Plan 2016 and Policies DMD 5 and DMD 8 of the 

Development Management Document (2014) set minimum internal space 
standards for residential development. The Nationally Described Internal 
Space Standard applies to all residential developments within the Borough 
and the London Plan Housing SPG adopted in 2016 reflects the Nationally 
Described Space Standards. 
 

12.2 With regards to private amenity space policy DMD 9 specifies the 
requirements for private and communal amenity space for such developments 
as is proposed here. The requirements relevant to this development are as 
follows: 

 
- 1-bed, 2-person requires 5 sqm  
- 2-bed, 3-person requires 6 sqm  
- 2-bed, 4-person requires 7 sqm  
- 3-bed, 4-person requires 7 sqm  
- 3-bed, 5-person requires 8 sqm 

 
12.3 It is noted that the areas given above are on the condition that communal 

amenity space is also available. In this instance there will be a provision of 
135 sqm of landscaped communal amenity space for all occupiers of the 
development. 

 
12.4 Policy 3.5 of the London Plan specifies the following minimum floor areas for 

residential development as follows:  
 

- 1-bed units should have a minimum floor area of 50 sqm; 
- 2-bed units should have a minimum internal floor area of 61 sqm for 3-

persons and 70 sqm for 4-person units; and 
- 3-bed units should have a minimum floor area of 74 sqm for 4-persons and 86 

sqm for 6-persons.  
 
12.5 The proposed residential area is 1,515sqm and would be made up of 18 units 

over 4 floors (first to fourth floor) leading off from two cores, as follows: 
 

First floor 
 

5 units comprising: 
 

- 2 x 1-bed, 2-person units (both 51 sqm) 
- 1 x 2-bed, 3-person (66 sqm) 
- 1 x 2-bed, 4-person (75 sqm) 
- 1 x 3-bed, 5-person (94 sqm) 

  
Second floor 

 
6 units comprising: 

 
- 3 x 1-bed, 2-person (2 x 51, 1 x 60 sqm for wheelchair accessible unit) 
- 3 x 2-bed, 3-person (2 x 65 sqm, 1 x 66sqm) 

 

Page 33



Third floor 
 

6 units comprising: 
 

- 3 x 1-bed, 2-person (2 x 51 sqm, 1 x 60 sqm for wheelchair accessible unit) 
- 3 x 2-bed, 3-person (1 x 65 sqm, 2 x 66 sqm) 

 
Fourth floor 

 
1 unit comprising: 

 
- 1 x 3-bed, 5-person (96 sqm) 

 
12.6 The proposed units meet the required London Plan standards for the 

respective units in terms of floor area in relation to proposed occupancy. 
Thirteen of the eighteen units would provide true double aspect units with the 
other five units (all 1-bedroom units) providing habitable rooms with windows 
on more than one wall (i.e. ‘enhanced’ single aspect units with one window 
facing to the rear and one window facing to the side within the same room). 
The proposed units provide useable, flexible and accessible layouts and all 
room sizes which are acceptable in terms of size.  

 
12.7 Each of the units will also have private amenity space with the first-floor units 

having private amenity areas between 6 sqm and 26 sqm; the second and 
third floor units having private amenity space between 6 sqm and 7sqm; and 
the fourth-floor unit having 122 sqm of private amenity space due to its 
rooftop position.   

 
12.8 As mentioned earlier in addition to each unit having private amenity space 

there will also be a communal landscaped amenity area of approximately 
135sqm at first floor level. 

 
Summary of Standard of Accommodation 

  
12.9 The proposed residential element of the development operates within a 

constrained site whereby the building has many demands in terms of 
maximising the floorspace, being sensitive to the existing environment and 
being sited so as to minimise potential impact to existing neighbouring 
occupiers. In this context the proposal offers a good standard of internal 
accommodation and private / communal amenity space.   

 
Housing Mix 

 
12.10 Policy DMD 3 and Policy 5 of the Core Strategy seek new development to 

incorporate a mix of dwelling types and sizes to meet identified housing 
needs in the Borough. 
 

12.11 The Council’s current recommended dwelling mix ratios are as follows: 
 

- 1 and 2-person flats - 20% 
- 2 bed flats - 15% 
- 3 bed houses - 45% 
- 4 + bed houses - 20% 

 
 

Page 34



12.12 The development proposes the following dwelling mix: 
 

- 8 x 1-bed 
- 8 x 2-bed 
- 2 x 3-bed 

 
12.13 Whilst the dwelling mix does not entirely align with current recommendations 

outlined within policy guidelines, it is recognised that the housing needs of the 
borough are changing at a fast pace and as such it is considered reasonable 
to show some flexibility in light of this.   

 
Summary of Standard of Accommodation and Proposed Mix of Units 

 
12.14 In light of the above and having regard to the confines of the site and the 

numbers of units that could be reasonably accommodated at each respective 
floor, it is considered that the proposed mix of units and standard of 
accommodation is considered acceptable, in this instance. Notwithstanding 
the above, it is considered appropriate to secure the mix and size of units 
through an appropriately worded condition to ensure that any potential future 
changes are fully policy / standards compliant and appropriate levels of 
contributions can be secured. 

 
13.   Amenity Impact 
 
13.1  London Plan policy 7.6 states that buildings should not cause unacceptable 

harm to residential amenity, including in terms of privacy and overshadowing. 
Policies DMD 6 and 8 ensure that residential developments do not prejudice 
the amenities enjoyed by the occupiers of neighbouring residential properties 
in terms of privacy, overlooking and general sense of encroachment. 
Furthermore, Policy CP30 of the Local Plan seeks to ensure that new 
developments have appropriate regard to their surroundings, and that they 
improve the environment in terms of visual and residential amenity.  
 
Overlooking / Privacy / Loss of Light 
 

13.2 As previously mentioned the existing builders’ merchants is an L-shaped 
building sitting to the southern and western side of the site with the western 
side reaching the boundary of the rear gardens of some Coombes Corner 
residential properties. The existing building is a reasonably high warehouse 
style building which sits at the boundary of the rear gardens of the properties 
to the rear. The proposed building will sit away from these properties towards 
the street frontage on Green Lanes and as such, whilst the new building will 
be substantially higher, as it will be further away from the rear residential 
properties, the visual impact would be lessened. Figures 3 to 6 below 
illustrate the proposed changes from the perspective of the residential 
properties to the rear. Figure 2 earlier in the report shows an aerial view of the 
existing building in relation to proximity to neighbouring properties. 

 
13.3 The site is located in an area largely characterised by mixed use buildings to 

the front and residential properties to the rear. The distances between the 
rear windows of the residential properties in Coombe Corner and the rear 
windows of the new residential units would be approximately 42m, which far 
exceeds local and regional policy guidance in terms of distancing 
requirements between residential properties.  

 

Page 35



13.4 Whilst the proposed building will contain rear balconies to each unit and an 
area of communal amenity space at first floor level, given the distances 
between Coombe Corner properties and the proposed new residential units, 
officers do not consider there will be harm to existing occupiers in terms of 
overlooking and / or loss of privacy and / or loss of light, as a result of the 
development. Notwithstanding a pre-commencement condition is 
recommended requiring further details of the balconies to the new residential 
units to be submitted. These details should demonstrate that opaque 
screening of a suitable height will be inserted to the balconies in order to 
minimise any potential overlooking to existing occupiers to the rear of the site.  

 
 

 
Fig.3: Existing rear elevation of the site facing east (view from rear of Coombes Corner) 
showing Compton Lodge to the left and the old police station to the right. 

 

 
Fig.4: Existing side elevation of the site facing north showing Compton Lodge on the far side. 

 

 
Fig.5: Proposed rear elevation of the site facing east (view from rear of Coombes Corner) showing Compton 
Lodge to the left and the old police station to the right. 

 

Page 36



 
Fig.6: Proposed side elevation of the site facing north showing Compton Lodge on the far side. 

 
Operational Hours / Deliveries 

 
13.5 As mentioned above, the applicant has proposed opening hours for the 

commercial element of 6.00am to 8.00pm Monday to Saturday, 9.00am to 
4.00pm Sunday and 7.00am to 7.00pm Bank Holidays, however being 
mindful of the existing hours of the builders’ merchants and the close 
proximity of the proposed residential element, officers are of the view that the 
following hours would be more appropriate: 7.00am to 7.00pm Monday to 
Saturday and 9.00am to 4.00pm Sundays & Bank Holidays. This would 
ensure the commercial element of the proposal does not unduly impact on the 
amenity of existing and future residential occupiers. 

 
Noise 

 
13.6 The application documents include a noise report that assesses plant noise 

levels for the proposed development and the noise levels to the nearest 
noise-sensitive receptor. The report concludes that internal ambient and 
maximum noise levels in habitable spaces of the proposed development can 
be suitably mitigated to meet ‘desirable’ noise levels. 

 
13.7 The report also concludes that the ambient noise levels within the proposed 

external amenity are predicted to be within the acceptable upper limit at the 
south west elevation, fourth floor, and are predicted to exceed the acceptable 
upper limit at the north-east elevation, fourth floor. 

 
13.8 Given the findings for the north-east elevation on the fourth-floor               

mitigation measures are set out within the report which will reduce the noise 
levels as much as is practicable in these areas. The mitigation measures 
include specific glazing and trickle vent insulation standards for both the front 
and rear elevations.  

 
13.9 In addition to the above plant noise it is also noted that the proposed 

development is located in a heavily trafficked location and noise levels are 
likely to be high. As such officers recommend a condition is attached requiring 
the development to be constructed/adapted so as to provide sufficient air-
borne and structure-borne sound insulation against externally generated noise 
and vibration.  

 
Summary of Amenity Impact 

 
13.10 Whilst it is noted that there will inevitably be some level of impact arising from 

a development of this nature, it is clear from the above that any resulting 
amenity impact will be at an acceptable level. Notwithstanding officers 
recommend pre-commencement conditions requiring details pertaining to 
noise levels and prevention of loss of privacy / overlooking from balconies to 

Page 37



be submitted, to ensure that any impact arising from the development is of an 
acceptable level. 

 
13.11 In light of the above the proposal is considered acceptable in terms of 

residential amenity impact subject to conditions as stated. 
 
14.   Transport Impact and Refuse & Recycling  

 
14.1 DMD 45 relates to car parking, cycle provision and parking design. DMD 47 

states that new development proposals will need to demonstrate that enough 
space for servicing, circulation and access to, from and through the site is 
provided. All developments must be fully accessible to pedestrians and 
cyclists and assist with general permeability within an area and the current 
development does not provide this.  London Plan policy 6.13, DMD policy 45 
(Parking Standards and Layout) and 47 (Access, New Roads and Servicing) 
states that operational parking for maintenance, servicing and deliveries is 
required to enable a development to function.  

 
14.2     The Public Transport Accessibility Level (PTAL) of the site is 3 which is 

medium within a rating whereby 0, 1a, 1b are very low, 2 is low, 3 is medium, 
4 is good, 5 is very good and 6 is excellent.  A 3, or medium, rating would 
usually mean a site has one or two frequent bus routes nearby, and possibly 
a national rail station. 

 
14.3 The site is not in but lies adjacent to a Controlled Parking Zone where 

restrictions apply between 10.30am and 11.30am Monday to Friday. 
 
14.4 Green Lanes is a busy principal road. The site is relatively well served by 

frequent public transport services with local bus routes, and it is a short walk 
to Winchmore Hill rail station. The site is close to the Winchmore Hill CPZ, 
and there are double yellow lines outside most of the site frontage, with a 
loading bay to the right of the site. 

 
Car Parking 
 

14.5 London Plan Policy 6.13 seeks an appropriate balance between promoting 
new development and preventing excessive car parking provision that can 
undermine cycling, walking and public transport use. 

 
14.6 Policy guidance advises that the appropriate maximum residential parking 

standards are as follows:  
 
       -    3 beds = up to 1.5 parking spaces per unit; and 
       -    1-2 beds = less than 1 parking space per unit. 
 
14.7 The proposed level of car parking is 9-spaces in total for the residential 

element (including 2 wheelchair accessible bays) and 4-spaces in total for the 
commercial element (including 1 wheelchair accessible bay). 

 
14.8 Although the level of parking provision is aligned with London Plan Policy, it 

should also be noted that 20% of all spaces should provide for electric 
vehicles with an additional 20% passive provision for electric vehicles in the 
future. As such a condition is recommended requiring this provision to be 
implemented prior to occupation of either the commercial or residential 
element. 

Page 38



 
14.9 A Transport Statement (TS) has been produced in support of the application. 

Included within the TS is a local car parking stress survey that has been 
undertaken to identify any further on-street parking opportunities that may 
exist for residential purposes. The Parking Survey Report follows the 
Lambeth survey methodology and indicates that during the specified survey 
times, there was ample local on-street parking available that could 
accommodate any overspill / visitor parking associated with the residential 
uses proposed on-site. Although the report states on-street parking could 
accommodate overspill, as there will be less than 1-space per unit available 
within the site, a condition is recommended requiring details of a parking 
allocation policy to be provided. Notwithstanding, it is noted the Council’s 
Transport team are satisfied with the proposed car parking provision. 

 
Trip Generation 

 
14.10 Information pertaining to traffic generation has been included within the 

submitted Transport Statement which concluded that the proposed 
redevelopment of the application site will not have a severe impact on the 
safety or operation of the local highway network. 

 
Access / Egress and Servicing 

 
14.11 The development will contain two access points, one for the commercial 

element to the south-east frontage and one for the residential element to the 
north-east frontage. The access / egress arrangements within the proposal 
have undergone negotiation during the application process to ensure officers 
are in support of this element of the scheme. Requested changes in relation 
to access / egress have included revisions to the gate setback on the 
carriageway edge to ensure pedestrian safety can be maintained and a 
revised swept path analysis to ensure there is adequate room for passing 
vehicles within the residential side of the site. 

 
14.12 A Swept Path analysis has been undertaken and drawings have been 

provided demonstrating that the commercial part of the site can be effectively 
served by larger delivery vehicles.  

 
14.13 The creation of the new accesses would require reinstatement of the footway, 

following removal of the existing site access, and may require the relocation 
of a lamp column and amendment to existing cycle infrastructure. To that end 
officers suggest detailed plans are required by condition to ensure safe and 
accessible linkages for pedestrians and cyclists are maintained in the 
interests of highway safety. 

 
14.14 As the proposed access / egress to the residential side will result in physical 

modifications to the newly created cycle highway outside of the site, a 
financial contribution of £10,000 has been agreed with the applicant and will 
be secured within the section 106 agreement. This is a mitigation measure 
which will be used to improve the cycle highway on the opposite side of the 
road.  

 
Cycle Parking 

 
14.15 The development should provide secure, integrated, convenient and 

accessible cycle parking in line with the minimum standards set out in the 

Page 39



Further Alterations to the London Plan Table 6.3 and the guidance set out in 
the London Cycle Design Standards. In this regard Table 6.3 gives the 
minimum standards expected for cycle parking: 

 
Land 
use 

Long-stay 

Dwellings 
(all) 

1 space per studio and 1-bedroom unit 
2 spaces per all other dwellings 

 
14.16 In addition, the development should provide short stay cycle parking in an 

accessible location at a ratio of 1 space per 40 units, with a minimum 
provision of 2 spaces. 

 
14.17 The proposal indicates that there will be parking provided for 28 cycles which 

is acceptable. Officers recommend a condition for cycle storage details to be 
submitted to ensure this detail of the proposal is appropriate. In addition, a 
further condition is suggested requiring cycle parking for the commercial 
element to be provided. 

 
Refuse and Recycling 
 

14.18 Policy 5.17 of the London Plan requires suitable waste and recycling storage 
facilities in all new developments whilst Core Policy 22 supports the provision 
of a sufficient, well-located waste management facility and requires all new 
developments to provide on-site waste treatment, storage and collection 
throughout the lifetime of the development.  

14.19 Meanwhile Policy DMD 57 notes that all new developments should make 
provision for waste storage, sorting and recycling, and adequate access for 
waste collection.  

 
14.20 The location for waste storage has been indicated on the plans along with 

details of the capacity of bins being specified. Two storage areas are shown 
on plans with the total number of bins being provided as follows: 

 
- 6 x 1100lt for refuse; and  
- 4 x 240lt for recycling.  

 
14.21 However inadequate storage is being provided for recycling and as such a 

condition is recommended requiring policy compliant recycling storage to be 
provided prior to occupation of the residential element of the development. 
Details of the current guidelines are set out in Enfield’s Waste and Recycling 
Planning Storage Guidance (ENV-08-162).  

 
Summary of Traffic / Transport and Refuse 

 
14.22 The above assessment demonstrates that the proposal would not result in an 

unacceptable impact in terms of traffic and transportation matters, and 
furthermore is not expected to result in any significant additional impact over 
and above the existing. As such, the proposal is considered acceptable in 
terms of transport and refuse subject to further details being submitted 
through conditions as follows: 

 
- details of cycle storage (residential element); 

Page 40



- details of cycle parking provision (commercial element); 
- details of car parking allocation policy; 
- details of recycling storage; 
- details of modifications to cycle infrastructure; and 
- details of car parking provision for electric vehicles. 

 
15.  Sustainable Drainage / Flood Risk   
 
15.1 London Plan policies 5.12 and 5.13 require the consideration of the effects of 

development on flood risk and sustainable drainage respectively. Core Policy 
28 (“Managing flood risk through development”) confirms the Council’s 
approach to flood risk, inclusive of the requirement for SuDS in all 
developments. Policy DMD59 (“Avoiding and reducing flood risk”) confirms 
that new development must avoid and reduce the risk of flooding, and not 
increase the risks elsewhere and that planning permission will only be 
granted for proposals which have addressed all sources of flood risk and 
would not be subject to, or result in unacceptable levels of flood risk on site or 
increase the level of flood risk to third parties. 
 

15.2 DMD61 (“Managing surface water”) requires the submission of a drainage 
strategy that incorporates an appropriate SuDS scheme and appropriate 
greenfield runoff rates. 
 

15.3 Whilst the urban siting and location of the development would result in some 
restriction in terms of what can be provided in the way of SuDS on the site, 
officers recommend that further investigation is undertaken to establish if any 
further measures can be implemented in this regard.  To this end conditions 
are recommended in relation to a ‘SuDS Strategy’ being provided with full 
details of Suitability; Quantity; Quality; and Functionality, and a further ‘Final 
Strategy’ being provided which includes final sizes, cross sections, 
specifications and functionality calculations (where necessary).  

 
16. Sustainability 

 
16.1  The revised National Planning Policy Framework (2018) places an increased 

emphasis on responding to climate change, having regard to long-term 
implications for flood risk, coastal change, water supply, biodiversity and 
landscape, and the risk of overheating from rising temperatures. New 
development can help to reduce greenhouse gas emissions, such as through 
its location, orientation and design. Any local requirements for the 
sustainability of buildings should reflect the Government’s policy for national 
technical standards and increase the use and supply of renewable and low 
carbon energy and heat. The NPPF states that even small-scale projects 
provide a valuable contribution to cutting greenhouse gas emissions. 

 
16.2 The NPPF confirms that the purpose of the planning system is to contribute to 

the achievement of sustainable development, and policies relevant to 
sustainability are set out throughout the NPPF. Further planning policies 
relevant to sustainability are set out in chapter 5 of the London Plan, which 
states that development proposals should make the fullest contribution to 
minimising carbon dioxide (CO2) emissions in accordance with the following 
energy hierarchy: 
 
- Be Lean: use less energy; 
- Be Clean: supply energy efficiency; and 

Page 41



- Be Green: use renewable energy. 
 

16.3 Enfield’s DMD policy 49 requires the highest sustainable design and 
construction standards, having regard to technical feasibility and economic 
viability. These policies require new developments to address the causes and 
impacts of climate change by minimising energy use, supplying energy 
efficiently and using energy generated from renewable sources (Core 
Strategy Policy 20 and DMD51); seeking zero carbon developments (DMD50) 
– an ‘Outstanding’ rating is sought for the proposal under consideration here; 
using decentralised networks where feasible (DMD52); and providing on-site 
renewable energy generation to make-up any shortfall where feasible 
(DMD53). 

 
16.4 The borough’s policy in terms of zero carbon requirements for both 

residential, (2016 onwards), and non-residential premises, (2019 onwards), 
align with the requirements the London Plan. 

 
District Energy Network  

 
16.5 Policy DMD 52 of the Enfield Development Management Document notes that 

proposed development must consider connection to local decentralised energy 
networks that may be in the area. The applicants have stated that initial 
investigations show that there is not currently a system that could connect to 
the development site.  

 
16.6 However given the ever-increasing importance of sustainable development, in 

order to ensure the possibility of connecting to a DEN is fully explored, officers 
recommend a condition requiring further investigation to be undertaken. This 
should include exploring the feasibility of a temporary boiler being provided by 
the energy company (in this instance Energetik) if a nearby network is likely to 
become available in the near / mid-term. 

 
Building Regulations 

 
16.7 The development of buildings of this scale is expected to achieve 

improvements in line with the Building Regulations (Part L).  
 

Summary of Sustainability 
 
16.8 The submitted sustainability information gives detail on policy requirements 

however is somewhat limited in scope with regards to information detailing 
how policy requirements are going to be delivered in practice on the site. As 
such, in order to increase the sustainability credentials of the development, 
conditions are recommended as follows: 

 
- Further investigation into connecting to District Heating Network; 
- Energy Statement demonstrating how the development will seek to provide a 

35% reduction on the total CO2 emissions arising from the operation of a 
development and its services over Part L of Building Regs 2013; 

- Submission of Energy Performance Certificate; and 
- Investigation into whether measures such as green roofs and a rainwater 

recycling system, could be provided. 
  

16.9 Subject to the above measures being incorporated into the development and 
the viability of becoming connected to a District Energy Network being fully 

Page 42



explored, the proposal is considered acceptable in terms of sustainability and 
energy matters.  

 
17. Biodiversity  

 
17.1 Through the Enfield Plan, Core Strategy (2010-2025) Policy 36 the Council 

commits to ‘protect, enhance, restore or add to biodiversity interests within 
the Borough’. This is reaffirmed in the Enfield Development Management 
Document (2014) policies DMD 78 to 81.  
 

17.2 The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) recognise that the planning 
system should aim to conserve and enhance the natural and local 
environment by minimising impacts on biodiversity and providing net gains in 
biodiversity where possible, contributing to the Government’s commitment to 
halt the overall decline in biodiversity, including by establishing coherent 
ecological networks that are more resilient to current and future pressures. 
Paragraph 175 of the NPPF also states that opportunities to incorporate 
biodiversity in and around developments should be encouraged. 
 

17.3  The application site is situated in a highly urbanised environment and as a 
result, the site has little biodiversity or ecological value at present.   
 

17.4 However officers consider there would be a biodiversity enhancement as part 
of an overall landscaping scheme which is to be conditioned. The Council 
would seek maximum biodiversity enhancement through the landscaping 
measures proposed for the site.  

 
18. Trees / Landscaping 
 
18.1 Policy DMD 81 states that development must provide high quality landscaping 

that enhances the environment. The submitted landscaping plan sets out the 
proposals for the scheme, which include planting in the communal amenity space 
at the rear of the building and an area of shrub planting adjacent to the proposed 
car parking spaces. The plan also shows an existing tree which will need to be 
removed to allow for the construction of the proposed development, and one tree 
which will be retained. The proposed trees will include Himalayan Birch, 
Flowering Pear, and Rowan trees and will be supplied in planters.  

 
18.2 The proposed area of ground cover shrub planting will be located adjacent to the 

car parking area and will be planted at a ratio of 4 plants per sqm in groups of 5, 
7, and 9 plants of the same species to provide some level of variety and visual 
interest. 

 
18.3 Officers recommend a condition requiring details of tree protection to be provided 

prior to works commencing on site to ensure existing trees are appropriately 
protected during construction works.  As mentioned elsewhere in the report a 
condition is also recommended requiring biodiversity enhancement measures 
to be incorporated into the proposed landscape works. 

 
19.  Planning Obligations 

 
19.1 The agreed, necessary Heads of Terms are:  

 
i) Affordable housing - 36% affordable, all shared ownership (6 units);  
 2 x 1 bed (33%) 

Page 43



 3 x 2 bed (50%) 
 1 x 3 bed (17%) 

 
ii) Early and Late stage review mechanism; 

 
iii) Employment and Skills Strategy in accordance with s106 SPD; 

 
iv) Monetary contribution to the sum of 10k for improvement works to the 

cycle highway infrastructure opposite the site; 
 

v) £45,630.00 towards off-site education contributions (£2,525.00 per 
unit); 

 
vi) Early and late stage review mechanisms (in relation to viability and 

affordable housing); and 
 

vii) Section 106 management and monitoring fee. 

20.  CIL  
 

20.1 This would be calculated in accordance with the Mayor’s adopted Community 
Infrastructure Levy Charging Schedule 2012 and Enfield’s adopted 
Community Infrastructure Levy Charging Schedule 2016. The payments 
would be chargeable on implementation of the commercial development.   

 
20.2 As there is a proposed reduction of commercial floorspace the CIL calculation 

is based on the residential element as follows: 
 

 
 
21. Conclusion 
 
21.1 The proposal is considered acceptable in terms of land use, which is   

already established, and is also considered acceptable in terms of design, 
neighbour amenity impact, transport impact, proposed sustainability and 
energy reduction measures. This is subject to conditions and to an 
appropriate Section 106 (s106) agreement, the draft Heads of Terms of which 
have been agreed with the applicant.  

 

Page 44



21.2 This report shows that the benefits of the proposed development have been  
given due consideration and are sufficient enough to outweigh any perceived 
harm. In this respect the benefits are summarised again as follows: 

 
i) The principle of the proposed development is acceptable in that it 

would be consistent with the objectives of national, regional and local 
policy in terms of supporting and securing sustainable growth and 
employment opportunities within the borough, delivering homes in a 
largely residential area, while retaining the existing number of jobs; 

 
ii) The site would retain commercial floorspace at ground floor level and 

provide additional housing stock for the borough by providing 18 
additional units including a 36% affordable offer; 

 
iii) The development would make better use of the site by retaining a 

commercial element whilst providing housing including an affordable 
element; 

 
iv) The development will provide good quality residential units in a good 

location; each of the residential units will be double aspect and have 
private amenity space with 135sqm of communal amenity space also 
being provided at first floor level; 

 
v) The development is acceptable for this location in terms of its 

appearance, size, siting, scale and design and is an improvement to 
the existing building; 

 
vi) The development will improve the visual element of the streetscene, 

and will also provide a more coherent link between the existing 
buildings to the north and the Grade ll listed building to the south; 

 
vii) The development would create 9 on-site parking spaces (including 2 

accessible spaces) which would reduce impact upon on-street 
parking. 28 on-site cycle spaces would also be created which would 
encourage sustainable methods of transport. As such the 
development is acceptable in terms of parking, traffic generation and 
servicing;  

 
viii)  Whilst the commercial footprint would reduce, there would be no loss 

of employment as a result of the development. 
 

ix) The development will not have an unacceptable impact on neighbouring 
residential amenity given the distances between the site and 
neighbouring occupiers; 

 
x) The developers will pay a financial contribution towards improving the 

cycle highway opposite the site, thus encouraging more sustainable 
methods of transport; and 

 
xi) The sustainability credentials of the building will be improved by use of 

measures such as: Improved thermal efficiency, external lighting 
optimised for maximum efficiency, internal & external LED Lighting, 
Building Management System Controls and high efficiency motors. 

 

Page 45



21.3 Having regard also to the mitigation secured by the recommended conditions 
and Section 106 Agreement, it is considered the proposed development is 
acceptable when assessed against the suite of relevant planning policies and 
that planning permission should be granted.  

 
22.  Recommendation 

 
22.1 That subject to the completion of a s106 Agreement to secure the obligations 

as set out in the report, the Head of Development Management / the Planning 
Decisions Manager be authorised to GRANT planning permission subject to 
conditions. 

 

Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



A
ffordable units

Private units

Page 55



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMITTEE HELD ON TUESDAY 15 OCTOBER 2019
	Minutes

	4 REPORT OF THE HEAD OF PLANNING  (REPORT NO. 138)
	5 19/01285/FUL - TRAVIS PERKINS, 699 GREEN LANES, LONDON, N21 3RS
	1. Executive Summary
	1.1 The report seeks approval to a scheme involving the demolition of existing buildings and erection of a part 4-storey, part 5-storey building comprising employment floorspace with associated trade area, storage and showroom at ground floor level (S...
	1.4 The reasons for recommending approval are:
	i) The principle of the proposed development is acceptable in that it would be consistent with the objectives of national, regional and local policy in terms of supporting and securing sustainable growth and employment opportunities within the borough...
	ii) The site would retain commercial floorspace at ground floor level and provide additional housing stock for the borough by providing 18 additional units including a 36% affordable offer;
	iii) The development would make better use of the site by retaining a commercial element whilst providing housing including an affordable element;
	iv) The development will provide good quality residential units in a good location; each of the residential units will be double aspect and have private amenity space with 135sqm of communal amenity space also being provided at first floor level;
	v) The development is acceptable for this location in terms of its appearance, size, siting, scale and design and is an improvement to the existing building;
	vi) The development will improve the visual element of the streetscene, and will also provide a more coherent link between the existing buildings to the north and the Grade ll listed building to the south;
	vii) The development would create 9 on-site parking spaces (including 2 accessible spaces) which would reduce impact upon on-street parking. 28 on-site cycle spaces would also be created which would encourage sustainable methods of transport. As such ...
	viii)  Whilst the commercial footprint would reduce, there would be no loss of employment as a result of the development.
	2. Site and Surroundings
	2.1 The subject site, measuring around 0.14ha, comprises a builders’ merchant and currently falls within a Sui Generis use class.  The builders’ merchant is characterised by 2 warehouse type buildings with a height equivalent to approximately 2-storey...
	2.3 Residential properties are located to the rear of the site with the rear gardens of (consecutively numbered) No’s 4, 5, 6 and 7 facing the site; an alleyway lies in between the rear gardens of these properties and the rear boundary of the subject ...
	3. Proposal
	3.4 The existing use of the site (Sui Generis) would be retained however the specific details of the use will be controlled by planning condition.
	3.5 The application documents state that 5 people are currently employed at the site and this will remain the same for the new commercial unit.
	4. Relevant Planning History
	5.  Summary of Key Reasons for Recommendation
	i) The principle of the proposed development is acceptable in that it would be consistent with the objectives of national, regional and local policy in terms of supporting and securing sustainable growth and employment opportunities within the borough...
	ii) The site would retain commercial floorspace at ground floor level and provide additional housing stock for the borough, including 18 new homes, 36% of which would be affordable;
	iii) The development would make better use of the site by retaining a commercial element whilst providing housing including an affordable element;
	iv) The development will provide good quality residential units in a sustainable location; each of the residential units will be double aspect and have private amenity space with 135sqm of communal amenity space also being provided at first floor level;
	v) The development is considered acceptable for this location in terms of its appearance, size, siting, scale and design and is an improvement to the existing building;
	vi) The development would improve the visual element of the streetscene, and will also provide a more coherent link between the existing buildings to the north and the Grade ll listed building to the south;
	vii) The development would create 9 on-site parking spaces (including 2 accessible spaces) which would reduce impact upon on-street parking. 28 on-site cycle spaces would also be created which would encourage sustainable methods of transport. As such ...
	viii)  Whilst the commercial footprint would reduce, there would be no loss of employment as a result of the development.
	6. Consultation
	7.  Relevant Policies
	i) The principle of the proposed development is acceptable in that it would be consistent with the objectives of national, regional and local policy in terms of supporting and securing sustainable growth and employment opportunities within the borough...
	ii) The site would retain commercial floorspace at ground floor level and provide additional housing stock for the borough by providing 18 additional units including a 36% affordable offer;
	iii) The development would make better use of the site by retaining a commercial element whilst providing housing including an affordable element;
	iv) The development will provide good quality residential units in a good location; each of the residential units will be double aspect and have private amenity space with 135sqm of communal amenity space also being provided at first floor level;
	v) The development is acceptable for this location in terms of its appearance, size, siting, scale and design and is an improvement to the existing building;
	vi) The development will improve the visual element of the streetscene, and will also provide a more coherent link between the existing buildings to the north and the Grade ll listed building to the south;
	vii) The development would create 9 on-site parking spaces (including 2 accessible spaces) which would reduce impact upon on-street parking. 28 on-site cycle spaces would also be created which would encourage sustainable methods of transport. As such ...
	viii)  Whilst the commercial footprint would reduce, there would be no loss of employment as a result of the development.


